
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, September 16, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any item 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board; however, no action may be taken on an item not on the 
agenda unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to matters not listed on the agenda up to a 
maximum of three (3) minutes.   

V. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these matters unless a board member or administrative staff member requests 
an item to be removed prior to the vote by the Board of Directors.   

A. Board Meeting Minutes - September 2, 2025 

B. Board of Directors Meeting Attendance Summary - August 2025 

VI. GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 

VII. STAFF REPORT 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

A. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on August 31, 2025 
[Director Memorandum No. 25-189 - Page 63 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial 
report. 

B. Consideration of Purchasing Backflow Devices and Vaults for Upgrading Fire Services 
[Director Memorandum No. 25-190 - Page 90 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board: (1) approve the purchase of two vaults 
from Core and Main for a sum not to exceed $25,204.48; and (2) approve the 
purchase of six backflow devices from Backflow Parts USA for a sum not to exceed 

http://www.yvwd.us/


 

 
Page 2 

$28,911.49; and (3) adopt Resolution No. 2025-66 transferring reserve funds for a 
total of $54,115.97 for the cost. 

C. Progress Report for the Lift Station 4 Replacement Project [Director Memorandum No. 25-
191 - Page 103 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff presentation, no action required. 

D. Progress Report for the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project - Yucaipa [Director 
Memorandum No. 25-192 - Page 107 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff presentation, no action required. 

E. Authorization to Enter into a Property Management Agreement for the Single Family 
Residence Located at 33889 Enoch Avenue, Yucaipa [Director Memorandum No. 25-193 - 
Page 111 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to enter 
into an agreement with Titan Real Estate Group for the rental of the subject property. 

IX. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

X. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. October 7, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

B. October 21, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

C. November 4, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

D. November 18, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

E. December 2, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

F. December 16, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

G. January 6, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Cancelled 

H. January 20, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

I. February 3, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

J. February 17, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

XI. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel Existing Litigation - Yucaipa Valley Water District vs. vs 
South Mesa Water Company  
San Bernardino County Superior Case No. CIVDS2009681  
(Government Code, Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators - Government Code § 54954.5(b): 
Property: 35525 Wildwood Canyon Road, Yucaipa, California - APN 124211101 and 
124211201 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Party: Keven II Stirdivant 
Under Negotiation: Terms and Price 
 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Government Code § 54954.5(c): 
Possible initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government 
Code Section 54956.9: One potential case 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Consent Calendar 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 3 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 11 

MINUTES OF A BOARD MEETING 
 

September 2, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Director Jay 
Bogh at 4:00 p.m. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The meeting attendees participated in the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 

ROLL CALL Director Jay Bogh, Director Greg Bogh, Director Brett 
Granlund, Director Nyles O’Harra, and Director Joyce 
McIntire were present.   
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

None 
 

Director’s Present: Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, President 

Nyles O’Harra, Vice President 
Greg Bogh, Treasurer 
Joyce McIntire, Secretary 
Brett Granlund, Director 

Wade Allsup, Chief Information Officer 
Erin Anton, Administrative Manager 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Dustin Hochreiter, Public Works Supervisor 
Micah Knox, Resource Specialist 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Maya Lopez, Senior Engineering Technician 
Matthew Porras, Director of Engineering 
Mia Preciado, Senior Engineering Technician 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Manager 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 None Jeremy Jungreis, Rutan & Tucker 

 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Ron Coats, East Valley Water District 

David Duron, Customer 
Donna Snodgrass, Customer 
Kevin Walton, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Judy Woolsey, City of Yucaipa 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 4 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 11 

CONSENT CALENDAR The Consent Calendar consisted of the following: 

A. Board Meeting Minutes - August 19, 2025 

 
The motion to approve the Consent Calendar was made 
by Director Brett Granlund seconded by Director Greg 
Bogh, and approved by the following vote: 

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 

General Counsel Jeremy Jungreis reported on the 
following:  
 
Senate Bill 601 
 
A brief update was provided regarding SB601, a proposal 
intended to expand the authority of environmental groups 
and state agencies to regulate certain waters no longer 
under EPA jurisdiction due to recent Supreme Court 
decisions.  It was noted that SB601 is now a two-year bill 
and effectively stalled last week, though it may reappear 
next year. 
 
Senate Bill 711 
 
Director Brett Granlund requested an update on the 
status of Senate Bill 711, a bill addressing expanded 
video and accessibility requirements for online public 
meetings.  General Counsel Jeremy Jungreis will provide 
additional information at the next meeting. 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

None 
 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
 

DM 25-181 
 
RATIFICATION OF 
ADDITIONAL SCOPE OF 
WORK OF THE INTERIOR 
PROCESS PIPE PAINTING 
PROJECT AND 
CONSIDERATION OF 
EXTERIOR PROCESS 

Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky reported on the 
ratification of additional scope of work for the interior 
process pipe painting project and consideration of exterior 
process painting at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility.  Painting began on July 14, with work 
continuing on the interior piping.  During the process, 
several unanticipated areas required attention that 
amounted to $19,328 beyond the originally approved 
scope of services. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 5 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 11 

PAINTING AT THE YUCAIPA 
VALLEY REGIONAL WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY 
 

 
District Staff then presented a second component of the 
project relating to the DAF (Dissolved Air Flotation) units.  
One unit had recently been painted as part of the SCRAM 
project, while the remaining two units - last coated 
approximately 19 years ago - now require recoating.  The 
additional cost for this work is $21,840. 
 
During the discussion, questions arose regarding why 
certain areas were not included in the original bids.  
District staff acknowledged that, due to the timing of the 
bid process and the complexity of the facility’s piping and 
grates, the scope of work had not been fully defined at 
the outset.   
 
Overall, the contractor’s performance was praised, and 
staff recommended ratification of the additional work and 
approval of the proposed painting for the DAF units. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board of 
Directors: (1) ratify the interior pipe painting project and 
authorizes the General Manager to execute a contract 
with Precision Painting for the exterior process painting 
for a combined amount not to exceed $41,168; and (2) 
adopt Resolution No. 2025-63 transferring reserve funds 
for the additional cost of the project. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 25-182 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
REPLACING THE PROCESS 
PIPING FOR DISSOLVED AIR 
FLOATATION UNITS NOS. 1 
AND 2 AT THE YUCAIPA 
VALLEY REGIONAL WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY 
 

Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky discussed the 
potential replacement of process piping for dissolved air 
flotation (DAF) units 1 and 2 at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility.  It was noted that, over 
the past 18 years, the original carbon steel piping had 
developed holes and had been replaced with PVC in 
some areas.  While PVC was previously used as a 
substitute, concerns were raised regarding its suitability, 
especially given the use of compressed air in the DAF 
process, which could pose safety risks.  For this reason, 
stainless steel is now recommended for all process piping 
in these units.  The new DAF unit being installed by 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 6 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 11 

SCRAM will also feature stainless steel piping, aligning 
with this recommendation. 
 
Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of 
Directors: (1) authorize the General Manager to approve 
the piping replacement with Borden Excavating for a sum 
not to exceed $21,526.91; and (2) adopt Resolution No. 
2025-51 transferring reserve funds for the cost of the 
project.   
 
Director Greg Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 25-183 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES 
FOR THE SALINITY AND 
GROUNDWATER 
ENHANCEMENT PROJECT AT 
THE WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING FACILITY 
 

Senior Engineering Technician Mia Preciado discussed a 
contract for geotechnical services supporting the Salinity 
and Groundwater Enhancement (SAGE) Project at the 
Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.  The SAGE 
Project, previously awarded to Caliagua in June for a 
contract sum not to exceed $45,636,460, is a major 
facility upgrade involving construction of a new Advanced 
Water Treatment Building and upgrades to the existing 
microfiltration and UV building.  The project will employ 
reverse osmosis membranes to achieve full advanced 
treatment and generate high-quality water suitable for 
direct groundwater injection.  Given existing local soil 
conditions, significant ground stabilization is required as 
part of the project scope.  
 
To address ongoing geotechnical oversight and testing 
throughout construction, District staff solicited bids from 
three firms: Verdantas, Terracon, and Alta California.  
Each proposal was subject to review to ensure 
completeness and suitability for project needs.  Major 
geotechnical tasks outlined in the scope include 
participation in pre-construction meetings to establish 
foundational procedures, as well as ongoing observation 
and testing related to soils, ground improvements, and 
reinforced concrete installation.  Among the proposals 
received, Verdantas submitted the lowest bid at 
$175,200.  
 
Director Nyles O’Harra moved that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to award the contract for 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 7 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 11 

geotechnical services to Verdantas for a sum not to 
exceed $175,200. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 25-184 
 
PROGRESS REPORT FOR 
THE R-12.5 RECYCLED 
WATER RESERVOIR 
PROJECT - RIVERSIDE 
COUNTY  
 

Director of Engineering Matthew Porras provided an 
update on the R-12.5 Recycled Water Reservoir Project 
in Riverside County, situated adjacent to Cherry Valley 
Boulevard near the I-10 Freeway.  The project has 
reached an important milestone with both one-million-
gallon welded steel tanks now fully operational and 
successfully supplying the Pressure Zone 12 recycled 
water distribution system.  District staff emphasized the 
extensive coordination required during startup, which 
included precise adjustments of automated valve 
operations, SCADA system configuration, and level 
setting to guarantee seamless communication between 
the facility and existing infrastructure.  Achieving full 
automation and meeting operational standards demanded 
continuous, around-the-clock monitoring by staff 
throughout the commissioning phase.  Notably, filling both 
tanks was completed in approximately a day and a half, 
surpassing initial expectations for the charging period.  
This efficiency was attributed to strong teamwork, 
effective communication, and careful attention to the 
setup of operational controls. 
 
No action is required from the Board at this time, as this 
report is for informational purposes only.  District staff will 
continue to keep the Board apprised of progress and will 
provide additional updates at future board meetings. 
 

DM 25-185 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
AND CONTRACT CHANGE 
ORDER NO. 1 FOR THE OAK 
GLEN ROAD 16-INCH 
DRINKING WATER PIPELINE 
PROJECT - CITY OF YUCAIPA  

Director of Engineering Matthew Porras discussed the 
closeout of the Oak Glen Road 16-inch Drinking Water 
Pipeline Project in the City of Yucaipa, focusing on the 
acceptance of the Notice of Completion and consideration 
of Contract Change Order No. 1.  The Oak Glen Road 
pipeline, known as the second phase of the R-16.2 Off-
site 16-Zone Pipeline, consists of approximately 1,810 
linear feet of 16-inch ductile iron pipeline, along with 
necessary valves, fire hydrants, laterals, and provisions 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 8 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 11 

 for future connections.  This critical infrastructure is the 
main supply line feeding the new reservoir for the 16.2 
pressure zone and significantly enhances water system 
capacity, reliability, and operational efficiency for the 
area. 
 
The pipeline project was awarded to Borden Excavating, 
Inc. for a contract amount of $915,474 with work starting 
in late April 2025.  The work area along Oak Glen Road 
between Cherry Croft Drive and Casa Blanca Avenue 
was challenging due to active connections to the legacy 
water system, the necessity to preserve historic features 
such as a notable stone wall and established olive trees, 
and spatial constraints that required careful planning for 
the new pipeline alignment.  A high line was installed 
behind the wall to avoid disrupting these features, with 
the new pipeline positioned at the edge of the roadway to 
maintain the integrity of the historical and environmental 
assets in the area. 
 
During construction, unanticipated conditions at the 
pipeline connection points led to the need for Contract 
Change Order No. 1, amounting to an additional 
$33,685.80, or a 3.7% increase over the original contract 
amount.  These challenges included working around 
legacy thrust blocks, leaking and fragile existing pipelines, 
and shifting trench alignments due to concrete from 
decades-old installations.  The District staff and the 
contractor collaborated closely to keep additional costs 
minimal, despite the complexity and potential for higher 
expenses. 
 
All contracted work, including punch list items, has now 
been completed, with only pavement restoration pending 
coordinated with the City of Yucaipa.   
 
Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute and file the 
Notice of Completion and Contract Change Order No. 1 
for the Oak Glen Road 16-inch Drinking Water Pipeline 
Project. 
 
Director Greg Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 9 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 7 of 11 

 

DM 25-186 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO AMEND 
THE CONTRACT WITH 
OPTERRA ENERGY SERVICES 
FOR A GAS LINE EXTENSION 
AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
EDISON CIVIL UPGRADES AT 
YUCAIPA VALLEY REGIONAL 
WATER FILTRATION FACILITY 
 

Director of Engineering Matthew Porras discussed an 
amendment to the contract with Opterra Energy Services 
for a gas line extension and Southern California Edison 
(SCE) civil upgrades at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility (YVRWFF).  The focus of this item 
is to streamline the final phases of the District's integrated 
energy resiliency initiative, targeted at enhancing energy 
reliability and reducing long-term operational costs at the 
YVRWFF through the implementation of solar power, 
battery storage, and natural gas generation systems, as 
designed in the existing Power Purchase Agreements 
(PPAs) and previously approved by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Historically, Opterra (formerly Engie) has been 
responsible for all on-site electrical and conduit work 
related to the installation of the solar panels, backup 
batteries, and associated switchgear infrastructure.  
Some customer-side upgrades, specifically the SCE-
required civil improvements and a segment of gas line 
extension, were assigned to the District.  The District staff 
is proposing to shift these responsibilities back to Opterra 
for enhanced coordination and expedited delivery, 
leveraging Opterra’s expertise and their direct 
engagement with project stakeholders, including SCE and 
the gas company. 
 
Key components of the civil upgrades include: 
 

• The installation of approximately 765 feet of 5-inch 
electrical conduit, vault structures, a retaining wall, 
and comprehensive SCE coordination and 
inspection for customer-side improvements 
necessary to enable grid interconnection of the 
microgrid system. 

 

• A joint-trench gas line upgrade, extending about 
330 feet of 4-inch high-pressure line (floating 
pressure of approximately 50 psi, as opposed to 
the standard 5 psi) to fully support the site's 
generators, in alignment with both SCE and gas 
company requirements.  Both utilities have 
approved the joint-trenching approach, and 
preliminary upgrades and coordination with the 
gas company have already been completed. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 10 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 8 of 11 

• These improvements are spatially aligned, with 
the civil and gas line activities sharing similar 
routes for optimized construction sequencing. 

 
The anticipated timeline for completing this scope of work 
is approximately 60 calendar days for construction, 
followed by an estimated two-week SCE approval period, 
positioning the District to energize its microgrid system by 
the end of November and achieve 'permission to operate' 
(PTO) status before December.  This strategy ensures 
the District maximizes operational efficiency and 
accelerates the realization of energy cost savings.  Once 
online, the plant will immediately benefit from the energy 
produced by the microgrid, reducing reliance on SCE-
supplied power. 
 
Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to amend the contract 
with Opterra Energy Services for a sum not to exceed 
$644,272. 
 
Director Greg Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 25-187 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-64 
ESTABLISHING A MINIMUM 
LOT SIZE FOR THE 
APPLICATION OF THE 
RESIDENTIAL DUAL-
PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS 
FOR THE USE OF RECYCLED 
WATER 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented proposed 
policy changes regarding dual-plumbing requirements for 
residential developments within the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District.  District staff noted that, having implemented 
dual-plumbing for several years, there was an opportunity 
to improve the policy by acknowledging that requiring 
dual-plumbing on small residential lots is not cost-
effective, provides minimal water savings, and poses 
design and operational challenges.  Specifically, 
subdivisions with small lots require significant 
infrastructure and create the potential for operational 
complications, while offering limited benefit from recycled 
water use for irrigation due to small yard areas. 
 
District staff analyzed the proposed lot configurations for 
the second phase of the Summerwind Project and 
identified that lots approaching 7,500 square feet begin to 
provide landscape areas significant enough to warrant 
dual-plumbing.  This assessment also factored in 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 11 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 9 of 11 

operational realities such as cross-connection prevention 
and the need for efficient infrastructure layout within 
subdivisions. 
 
The proposed policy, as outlined in the Resolution No. 
2025-64, sets the minimum lot size for the dual-plumbing 
requirement at 7,500 square feet, but it also allows for 
case-by-case decisions by staff to ensure subdivision 
consistency and logical routing of recycled water 
pipelines.  In cases where most homes in a planning area 
meet the threshold or there is value in continuity of 
infrastructure (for example, to serve parks, medians, or 
schools), staff may designate entire planning areas as 
dual-plumbed, regardless of individual lot sizes.  
Regardless of lot size, all common areas, parks, schools, 
medians, and landscaped open spaces will continue to be 
served by recycled water for irrigation. 
 
Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of Directors 
adopt Resolution No. 2025-64. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 25-188 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO AMEND 
THE DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 
CONTRACT WITH 
SEPARATION PROCESSES 
FOR THE MICROFILTRATION 
EXPANSION AND SALINITY 
CONCENTRATION 
REDUCTION AND 
MINIMIZATION (SCRAM) 
SYSTEM 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented a change 
request for additional engineering services related to the 
Salinity Concentration Reduction and Minimization 
(SCRAM) Project at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility.  The SCRAM Project, an integral 
initiative for the District, is designed to expand the 
microfiltration (MF) facility from 13.6 to 19.4 million 
gallons per day (mgd) and includes the addition of two 
new MF membrane units and associated equipment.  The 
project also adds two additional 3 mgd nanofiltration (NF) 
treatment trains, aiming to increase NF system recovery 
from 85% to 95% through recirculation of concentrate - a 
feature projected to save approximately 190 million 
gallons of water annually by converting additional 
recoverable water into drinking water rather than non-
potable water.  The SCRAM Project's efficiency upgrade 
positions the facility among the most efficient in the 
industry, reducing reliance on the State Water Project, 
improving water use efficiency, and positively impacting 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 12 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 10 of 11 

local aquifer recharge operations (Crystal Vault Yucaipa 
project). 
 
Due to unforeseen complexities in equipment integration, 
iterative design adjustments, protracted negotiations with 
suppliers, and extended construction support 
requirements, both SPI and subconsultant GHD have 
exceeded their original budgets.  The change request 
presented to the Board was for an additional $205,173, 
covering expanded engineering and construction phase 
services - $167,663 for SPI and $37,510 for GHD - 
bringing the cumulative engineering cost to approximately 
$1 million on a $12 million project, still below the industry 
average of 10-15% for projects of this complexity. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra moved that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to amend the existing 
Engineering Services Contract with Separation Processes 
for a sum not to exceed $205,173 and adopt Resolution 
No. 2025-65 Transferring Funds within the Water Fund as 
Transfer No. 20. 
 
Director Greg Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 

Director Joyce McIntire reported on the Trader Joe’s 
opening day ceremony held on August 21, 2025. 
 
Director Greg Bogh, Director Brett Granlund, and Director 
Joyce McIntire reported on the City of Yucaipa council 
meeting held on August 25, 2025. 
 
Director Greg Bogh, Director Brett Granlund, and Director 
Joyce McIntire reported on the Yucaipa Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Agency workshop held on 
August 27, 2025. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire reported on the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency finance and budget committee 
meeting held on August 28, 2025. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 13 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 11 of 11 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Jay Bogh called attention to the announcements 
listed on the agenda. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Director Jay Bogh, Director Greg Bogh, Director Brett 
Granlund, Director Joyce McIntire, and Director Nyles 
O’Harra were present in closed session with General 
Manager Joseph Zoba, Chief Financial Officer Allison 
Edmisten, and Legal Counsel Jeremy Jungreis to discuss 
agenda items B, and C: 
 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated 
Litigation - Government Code § 54954.5(c): 
Possible initiation of litigation pursuant to 
paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government 
Code Section 54956.9: One potential case 

 
Following the closed session conference, Legal Counsel 
Jeremy Jungreis reported that direction was provided to 
the General Manager by consensus of the Board of 
Directors. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:10 p.m.   
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      
              Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 14 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District
Meeting Attendance and Reimbursement Summary - Board of Directors
August 2025

Meeting Date Meeting or Event
Director 

Greg Bogh
Director 
Jay Bogh

Director 
Brett Granlund

Director
Joyce McIntire

Director 
Nyles O'Harra

August 4, 2025 SGPWA Board Meeting - - - - $265.32 - - - -
August 4, 2025 Calimesa City Council Meeting - - - - - - $265.32 $132.66
August 5, 2025 SBVMWD Board Meeting - - - - $265.32 $132.66 - -
August 6, 2025 Beaumont Basin Watermaster - - - - $265.32 $132.66 - -
August 7, 2025 Yucaipa Chamber Breakfast - - - - $0.00 - - - -
August 8, 2025 BIA Water Conference - - - - $265.32 - - $265.32
August 8, 2025 I-10 Ribbon Cutting Ceremony - - - - - - $265.32 - -

August 11, 2025 City of Yucaipa - City Council Meeting - - - - $265.32 - - $132.66
August 12, 2025 SBVMWD Board Workshop - - - - - - $132.66 - -
August 13, 2025 EVWD Board Meeting - - - - $265.32 - - - -
August 14, 2025 Inland Empire Business PAC @ Yaamava - - - - $0.00 - - - -
August 18, 2025 Special Districts Dinner - - - - $265.32 - - - -
August 18, 2025 Calimesa City Council Meeting - - - - - - $132.66 $132.66
August 19, 2025 YVWD Board Meeting $265.32 $265.32 $265.32 $265.32 $265.32
August 25, 2025 City of Yucaipa - City Council Meeting $265.32 - - $265.32 $132.66 $132.66
August 27, 2025 SGMA - City of Yucaipa $265.32 - - $265.32 $132.66 - -
August 28, 2025 SGPWA Board Finance and Budget Meeting - - - - - - $132.66 - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total Payment $795.96 $265.32 $2,653.20 $1,724.58 $1,061.28 

Date Other Expenses Reimbursed

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 15 of 121 



 

 

General Counsel Report 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 16 of 121 



 

Staff Report 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 17 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 18 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 19 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 20 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 21 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 22 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 23 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 24 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 25 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 26 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 27 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 28 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 29 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 30 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 31 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 32 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 33 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 34 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 35 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 36 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 37 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 38 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 39 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 40 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 41 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 42 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 43 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 44 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 45 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 46 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 47 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 48 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 49 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 50 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 51 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 52 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 53 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 54 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 55 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 56 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 57 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 58 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 59 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 60 of 121 



Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 61 of 121 



 

Discussion Items 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 62 of 121 



 

Director Memorandum 25-189 

Date: September 16, 2025 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
August 31, 2025 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial report. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. Please remember that the following financial information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports 
 

The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District. A summary of the report is as follows: 

 

Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy. 
 

($20,000,000)

($10,000,000)

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

$90,000,000

A
u

g-
2

3

Se
p

-2
3

O
ct

-2
3

N
o

v-
2

3

D
ec

-2
3

Ja
n

-2
4

Fe
b

-2
4

M
ar

-2
4

A
p

r-
2

4

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n

-2
4

Ju
l-

2
4

A
u

g-
2

4

Se
p

-2
4

O
ct

-2
4

N
o

v-
2

4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n

-2
5

Fe
b

-2
5

M
ar

-2
5

A
p

r-
2

5

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n

-2
5

Ju
l-

2
5

A
u

g-
2

5

Fund Balance

Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted

Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted

Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 63 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 2 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 64 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 3 of 27 

 
The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well 
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.  

 

 

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $80,000,000

 $100,000,000

 $120,000,000
Cash Position

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 65 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 4 of 27 

Cash Disbursement Report 
 
The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the 
month. All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness; checks are 
usually signed by the General Manager and one Director but may be signed by two Directors. 
The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or supporting documentation 
available for review to any board member upon request. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 66 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 5 of 27 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 67 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 6 of 27 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 68 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 7 of 27 

 

 
 

 
Financial Account Information 

The District currently deposits all revenue received via mail or in person into the Deposit Checking 
account. All revenue received through Invoice Cloud is also deposited into the Deposit Checking 
account. The General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District 
checks and electronic payroll. The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and 
redemption of US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds. The US treasury 
notes and bills are booked at cost. 

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000
Monthly Utility Revenue

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 69 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 8 of 27 

Monthly Water Shut offs:  Monthly utility bills are mailed near the first of each month. Once utility 

bills are more than 60 days past due, turn off notices are mailed out, and the District shuts off 

water for non-payment once a month. 

 

 
Compared to 10,205 in July (0.9% increase) and 7,278 customers on Xpress Bill Pay.  

 
Compared to 11,012 in July (0.2% increase) and 2,455 customers on Xpress Bill Pay.  

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

A
u

g-
2

3

Se
p

-2
3

O
ct

-2
3

N
o

v-
2

3

D
ec

-2
3

Ja
n

-2
4

Fe
b

-2
4

M
ar

-2
4

A
p

r-
2

4

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n

-2
4

Ju
l-

2
4

A
u

g-
2

4

Se
p

-2
4

O
ct

-2
4

N
o

v-
2

4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n

-2
5

Fe
b

-2
5

M
ar

-2
5

A
p

r-
2

5

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n

-2
5

Ju
l-

2
5

A
u

g-
2

5

Turn Off Notices vs. Shut Offs

Turn Off Notices Off & Locked

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 70 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 9 of 27 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 71 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 10 of 27 

 
 

30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 

Average Pre-Covid $271,756 $38,313 $20,889 $25,525 

Average Post Covid $430,970 $160,507 $50,082 $249,081 

% increase 58.59% 318.94% 139.75% 875.85% 
 

 

 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

5
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
1

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

4

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
4

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

Aging Trends-2020-August 2025 

30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

$2,000,000

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

5
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
1

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

4

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
4

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

Utilty Billing - Aging  Chart

30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 72 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 11 of 27 

Management Discussion 

This section is included in the monthly unaudited report to discuss items of importance that may 
have a financial impact on the District.  
 

• On February 15, 2023, the District was awarded a WIFIA loan of more than $81.4 million 
to fund eleven water and energy projects throughout the District.  

o District staff finalized the interim financing on June 18th for the short term WIFIA 
notes as well as the financing for the R-16.2 Reservoir. 

o The District has drawn down an estimated 43% for WIFIA projects. 

• The District has spent all the ARPA $2.3 million dollar grant related to R-12.5 Reservoir. 
The remainder of the project is funded by the WIFIA loan. 

• District staff is reviewing the future rate revenue for the District. 

• The fiscal year 2025-26 budget was approved by the Board on May 15, 2025.  

• The interim portion of the annual District Financial Audit was completed the week of May 
19th. The onsite portion of the final audit occurred the week of September 2nd. District staff 
is currently working with the auditors on all outstanding requests.  
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 73 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 12 of 27 

Summary of Property Tax Revenue:   

 

Current Month Year-to-Date Budgeted Amount Percentage 

Property Taxes $                               -      $                5,454,496 0% 

 

 
 

Investment Summary 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and the California 
Asset Management Program (CAMP). The yields for the treasury notes and bills are provided for 
each individual transaction. The historical annual yield for funds invested with LAIF and CAMP 
are also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports for LAIF, prepared by the State of California, are 
maintained by the District and available for review. The LAIF investment account is a pooled 
money account administered by the State of California. Additional information on the LAIF account 
is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports for CAMP, prepared by U.S. Bank, are maintained by 
the District and available for review. The CAMP is a California Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
established in 1989 to provide California public agencies with professional investment services. 
Investments offered through the Cash Reserve Portfolio (or “Pool”) and CAMP Term are permitted 
for all local agencies under California Government Code Section 53601(p). The individually 
managed portfolio is administered by PFM Asset Management LLC. Additional information on the 
CAMP account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment 
Policy and State law. The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six 
months. 

$
4

,8
4

7
,3

0
1

 

$
5

,1
4

8
,8

9
3

 

$
-

$
3

,9
8

2
,2

9
6

 

$
4

,9
2

3
,4

4
2

 

$
5

,4
5

4
,4

9
6

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

 $5,500,000

 $6,000,000

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Budget

Actual Allocation/Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 74 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 13 of 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 75 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 14 of 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 76 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 15 of 27 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 77 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 16 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 78 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 17 of 27 

 

 

Fiscal Year 2025-26 Detail Budget Status 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2025-26 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

 
Questions or Comments 

 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Chief Financial Officer directly. If you need additional information, the members of the 
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may 
desire.  
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 79 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 18 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 80 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 19 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 81 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 20 of 27 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 82 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 21 of 27 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 83 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 22 of 27 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 84 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 23 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 85 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 24 of 27 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 86 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 25 of 27 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 87 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 26 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 88 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-189 Page 27 of 27 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 89 of 121 



 
The District provides backflow 
prevention services 
throughout the Yucaipa and 
Calimesa communities within 
our service area.  District staff 
tests, repairs and replaces 
backflow devices, as well as 
installs the devices at all 
drinking water connections 
that are deemed a potential 
hazard to the drinking water 
distribution system.  
 
The District is dedicated to 
safeguarding the drinking 
water distribution system and 
upholding the requirements of 
the Cross-Connection Control 
Policy Handbook (CCCPH).  
As part of this policy, all single check fire service connections are required to be upgraded to 
Double Check Detector Assemblies (DCDAs). 
 
Based on the District’s assessment, the fire service connections identified on the map require 
upgrades during this fiscal year to ensure proper protection of the drinking water supply.  These 
assemblies were identified as testable devices; however, two fire service bypass meters were 
found to be sheared off and not recording actual water use. 
 
The District staff solicited three proposals to 
upgrade the cross connection control 
assemblies identified above.  The following 
quotes were received to complete this work. 
 
 
  

 

Director Memorandum 25-190 

Date:  September 16, 2025 Task: Various 

Prepared By: Steven Molina, Public Works Supervisor 

Subject: Consideration of Purchasing Backflow Devices and Vaults for Upgrading 
Fire Services 

Recommendation: That the Board: (1) approve the purchase of two vaults from Core and 
Main for a sum not to exceed $25,204.48; and (2) approve the purchase 
of six backflow devices from Backflow Parts USA for a sum not to 
exceed $28,911.49; and (3) adopt Resolution No. 2025-66 transferring 
reserve funds for a total of $54,115.97 for the cost. 

Vendor Cost 

Pride Plumbing $194,782.28 

Daart Engineering $325,662.00 

All Purpose Plumbing $597,979.22 

Image of fire services marked in red. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 90 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 2 of 13 

After receiving the proposals, District staff decided to prepare an internal estimate to perform 
the necessary work in-house.  Below is a breakdown of the materials cost to the District for 
backflow devices and vaults:  
 

 

 
 
Below is the total estimated cost, plus tax for each task to complete the backflow replacements 
in-house:  
 

Task Location Business 
Estimated Cost 

with Labor 

138546 34470 Yucaipa Blvd Big Brand Tires $10,548.07 

138544 34460Yucaipa Blvd Stater Bros $26,846.21 

138542 34448 Yucaipa Blvd Fitness 19 $12,367.79 

138540 34432 Yucaipa Blvd Abby’s and Various Outlets $15,548.07 

124946 34428 Yucaipa Blvd UPS Store and Various Outlets $15,548.07 

138537 34420 Yucaipa Blvd Rite Aid 
$26,846.21 

 

Paving Cost Estimate $2,911.00 

Total Estimated District Cost w/labor and materials $110,615.42 

 
District staff is requesting the Board approve the purchase of six backflow prevention assemblies 
and two water utility vaults for the upgrade of six fire service connections.  Two of these fire 
service connections will take priority due to the metered bypass on these devices being broken.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The cost of the materials will be funded by the Water Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [G/L Account 
# 02-000-10311].  The cost of labor is included in the 2025-26 adopted budget.    

Vault Suppliers Cost 

Core and Main (J&R) $25,204.48 

Jensen Precast $22,613.50 

Backflow Suppliers Cost 

Backflow Parts USA $28,911.49 

Bavco $34,383.49 

Backflow Supply $37,215.00+tax 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 91 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 3 of 13 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-66 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS WITHIN THE WATER FUND AS  

TRANSFER NO. 21 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of funding projects and 
programs within the District with funds set aside for this purpose, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has approved the purchase of backflow devices and vaults for 
upgrading fire services for a sum not to exceed $54,115.97 [Director Memorandum No. 25-190] and 
authorized the use of reserve funds for these expenditures. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 

 

Section 1: Fund Transfer No. 21 in the amount of $54,115.97 from the Infrastructure 
Reserves (02-000-10311) to fund the purchase of backflow devices and vaults for 
upgrading fire services.  

 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 16th day of September 2025. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 92 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 4 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 93 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 5 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 94 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 6 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 95 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 7 of 13 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 96 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 8 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 97 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 9 of 13 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 98 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 10 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 99 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 11 of 13 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 100 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 12 of 13 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 101 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-190  Page 13 of 13 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 102 of 121 



 

Director Memorandum 25-191 

Date: September 16, 2025 Task: 107749 

Prepared By: Mia Preciado, Senior Engineering Technician 

Subject: Progress Report for the Lift Station 4 Replacement Project 

Recommendation: Staff presentation, no action required. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District is in the 
process of completing construction of the Lift 
Station 4 replacement Project located east of 
Calimesa Boulevard in the city of Calimesa.  
The project was awarded to Borden 
Excavating on April 2, 2024 [Director 
Memorandum 24-063] for the replacement of 
the existing lift station which has reached the 
end of its useful life. 
 
Construction began on April 22, 2024 and a 
large portion of the on-going construction has 
been dedicated to the completion of the 
underground emergency storage and wet 
well.  Construction, sandblasting, and testing 
of the underground structures is now 
complete and Borden is working to finalize 
construction of the on-site sewer and and 
natural gas. 
 
At this time, Borden has completed the gas line tie-in to the on-site gerneator. This effort will allow 
for the natural gas back-up generator to maintain service of the lift station in the event that a power 
outage occurs. The District has also been working with Souther California Edison to coordinate 
electrical service. This includes the installation of a new powerpole on-site and electrical service 
equipment.  In the meantime, Borden has been working on the tubular steel fence installation in 
preparation for the completion of the project.  
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 103 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-191  Page 2 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 104 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-191  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 105 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-191  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 106 of 121 



 

 

 

Director Memorandum 25-192 

Date: September 16, 2025 Task: 87173 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Director of Engineering 

Subject: Progress Report for the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project - 
Yucaipa 

Recommendation: Staff presentation, no action required. 

 
The District owns and operates the 
drinking water storage facility [Asset ID: 
PW-R-13016.2] that was initially put 
into service in the early 1980’s.  The R-
16.2 drinking water storage facility 
consisted of a bolted steel tank 
measuring 38 feet in diameter and 24 
feet in height with a storage capacity of 
200,000 gallons with the necessary site 
piping to accommodate the distribution 
of water to and from the adjacent 15 
and 17 pressure zones.  The 200,000-
gallon tank site does not have an 
electrical service or a permanent 
booster station.  The goal of this project 
is to replace the 200,000-gallon tank, 
install a permanent booster station, and 
prepare the site for the future 
construction of a second drinking water 
reservoir and recycled water reservoir. 
 
The project is located off Oak Glen Road, east of Casa Blanca Avenue in the City of Yucaipa.  
The proposed project includes a 65-foot diameter, 600,000-gallon drinking water tank, an 
electrical service and booster station, a back-up generator, upgraded site piping, site fencing, 
SCADA communication equipment, various valves, fittings and appurtenances to operate and 
maintain the site (“Project”) all within the District’s existing property.   
 
On March 10, 2020, district staff presented the Project to the Board of Directors as a priority 
replacement infrastructure project due to its age and condition [Director Memorandum 20-064].  
 
On March 26, 2020, the Board authorized the design of the Project [Director Memorandum 20-
084]. 
 
On August 25, 2020, the Board of Directors authorized the Board President to execute 
Development Agreement 2020-04 that coordinated the details of the necessary easement with 
the property owner to the south of the Project [Director Memorandum 2020-125]. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 107 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-192  Page 2 of 4 

 

On March 21, 2023, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2023-22, certifying the Final 
Mitigated Negative Declaration for the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project [Director 
Memorandum 23-048].  
 
On April 16, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to solicit bids for the 
Project.  The bid period was opened May 29, 2024, and closed July 3, 2024 [Director 
Memorandum 24-068].   
 
On July 16, 2024, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contact to R.I.C. Construction 
Co., Inc. (“Contractor”) for a sum not to exceed $5,018,656 [Director Memorandum No. 24-112]. 
 
On November 19, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized Contract Change Order No. 1 (“CCO 
No. 1”).  CCO No. 1 was a no-cost adjustment to the contract but added seven days to the overall 
contract duration [Director Memorandum 24-171].  The adjusted contract duration is 547 
consecutive calendar days and is planned to be completed January 14, 2026.  The initiation of 
the contract change order was in order to adjust the connection point locations of the site piping 
to align with the recently installed off-site pipelines. 
 
On July 1, 2025, the Board of Directors authorized Contract Change Order No. 2 (“CCO No. 2”).  
District staff initiated CCO No. 2 in the effort to find a solution that does not interrupt drinking water 
service and fire-flow to its customers in the heat of summer [Director Memorandum No. 25-143].  
This solution included the contractor installing a “line-stop” and “shear-ring” as an alternative 
method to isolating the 17-zone drinking water distribution system in order to cut into the existing 
12-inch, 17-zone welded steel pipeline.  The traditional isolation method is typically suitable for a 
tie-in for new expansion of an existing pipeline, but in this specific case, and considering the time 
of year, the ability to keep the 17-zone pressurized is advantageous.  District staff evaluated the 
additional cost of CCO No. 2 and found the proposal to be reasonable and effective.   
 
The line-stop and shear-ring worked as planned and allowed the switch-over to take place.  The 
new 600,000-gallon tank was completed and passed all testing protocols.  District staff worked 
with the Division of Drinking Water and the Contractor to bring the newly completed 600,000-
gallon drinking water tank into service on July 23, 2025. 
 
The Contractor is currently installing tubular steel fencing along with the remaining site grading 
and v-ditches.  Other recent site work improvements include the storm water outlet structure and 
piping. 
 

 
Contract 
Changes 

Contract Amount 
% Change 

from Original 
Bid Amount 

Reference 

Original Bid Amount  $5,018,656 - - DM 24-112 

Change Order No. 1 $0 $5,018,656 0% DM 24-171 

Change Order No. 2 $26,034 $5,044,690 0.5% DM 25-143 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 108 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-192  Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 109 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-192  Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 110 of 121 



 

Director Memorandum 25-193 

Date: September 16, 2025 Task: Not Applicable 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Authorization to Enter into a Property Management Agreement for the Single 
Family Residence Located at 33889 Enoch Avenue, Yucaipa 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Titan Real Estate Group for the rental of the subject 
property. 

 
In August 2022, the District acquired three parcels totaling approximately 2.14 acres at the 
intersection of Enoch Avenue and Colorado Street for future water infrastructure needs.  One of 
these parcels, located at 33889 Enoch Avenue, includes a three-bedroom, two-bath residential 
home of roughly 1,850 square feet.  District staff recommends renting this home to receive 
financial benefits through rental income, while also ensuring regular maintenance and occupancy 
to protect the asset thereby reducing the risk of vandalism and deterioration.  The rental 
agreement will preserve the District’s flexibility with appropriate termination provisions when the 
parcel is needed to accommodate the proposed infrastructure projects. 
 

 
 
The property management agreement between the Yucaipa Valley Water District and Titan Real 
Estate Group grants Titan the exclusive right to rent the property through August 13, 2027, 
thereafter continuing month-to-month with a 30-day notice period for termination.  The contract 
authorizes the property manager to advertise, lease, collect rents, oversee tenant relations, 
arrange repairs, and ensure legal compliance, while requiring District oversight of specific 
expenditures.  The agreement specifies professional property management compensation with 
fees set at 7% of rent, or an $80 monthly minimum. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 111 of 121 



Director Memorandum No. 25-193  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Rental Property 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 112 of 121 



 

 

Board Reports and Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 113 of 121 



July 2025 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

75 full time employees 
 

FY 2025-26 Operating Budget: Water Division - $27,377,636 
 Sewer Division - $15,894,051 
 Recycled Water Division - $2,445,980 
 

Number of Services: 15,613 drinking water connections serving 19,718 units 
15,177 sewer connections serving 22,474 units 
904 recycled water connections serving 1,053 units 

 

Water System: 243 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,324 fire hydrants 
32 reservoirs - 38 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
3.376 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
12 MGD - Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
228 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,846 sewer manholes 
6 sewer lift stations 
1.46 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 44 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.623 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 114 of 121 



July 2025 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees, and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.848 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $2.786 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.798 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.969 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.966 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $18.50 per month 
1” Water Meter $30.90 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $61.61 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $47.72 per month 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 115 of 121 



July 2025 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2023-24 $0.1200 per $100 $0.1750 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2024-25 $40,858,510 $20,980,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.3054 per 1,000 
gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.9689 per 1,000 gallons.   

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 116 of 121 



July 2025 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the specialized language of the 
group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication difficulties where professionals in related fields use different 
terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means of achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) - The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a 
California state law that requires state and local agencies to identify, analyze, and mitigate potential 
environmental impacts of proposed projects before approving them.  

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli is the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of underground pipes that receive and convey sanitary 
wastewater or storm water. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 117 of 121 



July 2025 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals, hormones, and other organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce distinct 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts.  Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been 
established have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and 
chlorite. 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Fiscal Year - The twelve-month period beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30. 

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water used by the 
number of people served each day in a water system.  The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles -  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin.  This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 118 of 121 



July 2025 

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used later for peak demands or emergencies 
such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or steel 
reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake, to be water 
storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency with which water is 
applied to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) - Regional regulatory agency that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 119 of 121 

https://www.digalert.org/


July 2025 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement of water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

WIFIA - Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act.  The WIFIA program administered by the 
Environmental Protection Agency accelerates investment in our nation’s water infrastructure by providing long-
term, low-cost supplemental loans for regionally and nationally significant projects. 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 120 of 121 



July 2025 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

WIFIA Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 16, 2024 - Page 121 of 121 


	Agenda
	_2025 Placeholders.pdf
	Consent Calendar
	General Counsel Report
	Staff Report
	Request for Recurring Water Exchange
	Santa Ana River - Mill Creek Cooperative Water Project Agreement
	Table of Contents
	1.  Recitals
	2.  Definitions
	3.  Eligible Entities
	4.  Construction of Facilities
	5.  Delivery Provisions
	6.  Management
	7.  Ownership & Operation
	8.  Water Quality
	9.  Records
	10. Edison Company Agreements
	11. Shortage of Supply
	12. Breach
	13. Withdrawal from Agreement
	14. Provisions
	15. Use of Facilities...
	16. Water Charges & Payment Provisions
	17. Additional Parties
	18. Amendments
	19. Opinions & Determinations
	20. Notice
	21. Approvals Required
	Exhibit A - Entitlements to Water
	Exhibit B - Entitlement Water
	Exhibit C - Determination and Measurement of Exchangeable Water
	Exhibit D - Facilities to be Constructed
	Plate 1
	Plate 2
	Plate 3




	Discussion Items
	DM 25-189 Unaudited Report
	DM 25-190 Backflow Device Purchase
	DM 25-191 Lift Station 4 Update
	DM 25-192 R-16.2 Update
	DM 25-193 Property Management Agreement

	Board Reports and Comments
	Facts About YVWD
	Glossary of Terms
	Abbreviations




